Town of Williston Conservation Commission (WCC)
Minutes of April 1, 2020
Approved

Members Present: Laura Meyer, Gary Hawley, Jude Hersey, Reed Carr, Eric Howe, Kim Coleman,
Carl Runge

Members Absent:

Staff Present: Melinda Scott, Matt Boulanger, Emily Heymann

Others Present: Terry Marron, John Butterfield

Call to Order: Meeting was called to order at 9:07 AM.

Public Comment: Terry Marron gave an update on the proposed bluebird trail at
Catamount. Terry obtained several bluebird boxes from Vermont Audubon. She plans to
install them later this month. Terry asked whether the town would continue the Adopt-A-
Trail program this year. Melinda stated the program will continue, and that she is planning
to get everyone together, if only virtually. The trail report forms are posted on the town
website.

. Approval of March 4, 2020 minutes: Reed made a motion to approve the minutes as
written, Laura seconded the motion. The motion was carried with a 7-0 vote.

DP 20-18 Catamount Golf Preapplication: Paul O’Leary provided an overview of the
proposed project. The WCC reviewed this project in December 2019. The DRB hearing was
continued until April 14, 2020. The applicant has submitted a revised site plan. O’Leary
noted the biggest change in the design is the inclusion of 4.5 acres of open space including
a community park, field and garden space. An open space buffer has also been added to
the south and west sides of the parcel. They will need to delineate wetlands at DP phase,
and they expect that the number of units will be reduced as a result of the delineation.
Laura asked about the potential encroachment into the stream buffer near the access road
from Raven Circle. O’Leary responded that they are not sure whether the road itself will
encroach on the buffer. Eric asked about stormwater, and O’Leary responded that the
project will require a state stormwater permit.

The Findings and Recommendations were discussed. Melinda explained a finding related to
the ROW from Raven Circle and the legal issues. The ROW encroaches on the 50ft stream
buffer and under today’s regulations would not be allowed; however, because the ROW
was codified under a previous approval, it is considered a vested right and the applicant
has the legal right to use the ROW including constructing a road within it. Eric suggested
adding “from Raven Circle” to Finding #6 “The proposed access road...” Laura made a
motion to accept the Findings and Recommendations as amended. Jude seconded the

1



motion. The motion was carried with a 6-0 vote, with Carl Runge abstaining because he felt
he could not see the site plan and did not have a clear enough understanding of the issues
to vote on it.

ERF Prioritization: Melinda gave an overview of the analysis that was done. The ERF
prioritization is being revised to bring it up to date with current land uses and property
ownership, and also to take into consideration threat of development. Melinda stated she
experimented with the criterion of parcel size, running the analysis both considering parcel
size and not considering parcel size except to automatically characterize parcels under 5
acres as being low priority. The WCC looked at and discussed both methods. The WCC
generally agreed that they prefer scoring with acreage as a consideration, but wonder if
the scoring range should match other criteria (0-2 points). Kim asked about whether
certain criteria should be weighed more than others. Melinda stated that certainly can be
done. Reed stated he knows of a specific methodology for criteria weighting decisions and
he will share it to the group. Kim noted that each member may have certain bias toward
some criteria, but perhaps that can be balanced overall. Melinda stated she can send out
the scoring spreadsheet that indicates how different parcels are scored for all criteria. Kim
noted that the analysis was done on a parcel basis, which could be misleading if one part of
a parcel is resource rich but another part is not. Melinda stated the analysis could be done
on a raster instead, but it would be more difficult to interpret. The WCC discussed the
feasibility of trail building and whether it was considered. Melinda stated it had been
considered in a previous exercise looking at trail prioritization. The next steps in this
exercise would be to 1) review the scoring spreadsheet, 2) redo the analysis with acreage
scored in a similar manner to other criteria (0-2), and 3) Reed will share the “pairwise
rankings” methodology and the WCC will decide whether or not to use it. Carl asked for
clarification on how this analysis would be used. Melinda stated primarily to inform
decisions about land acquisition with ERF funding. Reed asked whether the results of the
analysis could be used to include parcels of desired open space on the Official Map. Matt
Boulanger answered that the Official Map could identify places where public parks or
green spaces are desired, but not necessarily entire parcels. Terry Marron asked how much
money is currently in the ERF, how it is contributed towards, and if the WCC has a list of
high-priority parcels. Carl stated that there is currently $73,428 in the ERF, which includes
the FY2020 allocation. Melinda stated the money comes from taxpayers (the town general
fund), and for FY2021 the allocation may be anywhere from $70,000 to $100,000. Melinda
believes there is a list of high-priority parcels resulting from the 2013 analysis. Terry asked
whether other towns have such funds for conservation, and how Williston’s ERF compares
to other towns. Eric and Carl each stated they think Williston’s program is one of the few in
the state and has been around the longest. Reed noted that the current analysis is being
done in part to help determine how much funding is needed to acquire the high priority
parcels. Terry asked whether the ERF could accept private donations and whether that has

2



ever occurred. Carl stated it’s happened only once in the late 1980s when Jeff Davis
donated $75,000 as mitigation for Taft Corners development. Eric stated it may be worth
considering how to accept private donations in order to build up the fund.

6. Five Tree Hill Draft Management Plan: This item was tabled until a future meeting.

7. Allen Brook water quality analysis and future monitoring — draft memo re continuing this
work: WCC discussed the memo Eric Howe drafted. Reed recommended changes to the
document and the WCC reviewed those changes. Melinda will incorporate the changes and
send it out to the WCC prior to the next meeting. Gary stated that he thought the memo’s
purpose was to justify hiring a consultant to conduct analysis, and to pause the monitoring
until the WCC has a better picture of the data from the analysis results. Other WCC
members stated they are not in favor of halting the monitoring at this time.

8. Staff Report — Other Business

e Town wide trail assessment: The town has tentatively hired SE Group to conduct a town
wide trail conditions assessment, to help determine long-term maintenance costs of the
trail network. The town is currently assessing the status of the FY 20 budget in light of
the fact that revenues have decreased due to COVID 19 pandemic. Melinda will keep
the WCC updated.

e Watershed grant was received from DEC for Allen Brook data analysis, however, the
funding amount is less than that requested by $1,500. We may need to reduce the
scope of work or find additional funding to pay for the analysis.

e Summer Conservation Intern update — Melinda hired Grace Patton as the Conservation
Intern. Due to the pandemic and stay at home orders, we may need to be flexible
regarding the intern.

e Public meetings: Kim noted that the WCC should think creatively about ways to engage
the public during this time. She mentioned that Ethan Tapper was holding webinars or
“virtual walks” to engage the public. Maybe he can do a webinar about Catamount
specifically. Carl questioned whether the DRB should continue to hold hearings based on
feedback from community members. Emily Heymann spoke about all the efforts town
staff were engaged in to make online meetings accessible to the public. Kim noted that
there is ongoing research where it is being demonstrated that in rural communities
online meetings are more accessible than in person meetings and there is more
participation. Matt Boulanger noted that statutory rules need to be adhered to, namely
that the DRB has only 45 days to make a decision and that holding online hearings
actually expands the public’s opportunities to participate.

The WCC agreed to hold the next meeting online beginning at 7:30 am on April 15.
Meeting was adjourned at 8:52 am.



Minutes Submitted by Melinda Scott: April 15, 2020
Approved by WCC: April 15, 2020



